
 
 

SCRUTINY : SOCIAL SERVICES 
 

3.00 pm TUESDAY, 21ST JANUARY, 2020 
COUNCIL CHAMBER 

 
A Pre-Meeting will take place in Conference Room 1 at 2.30 pm.   

This meeting is for Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 

 
The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using 

the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.   

 

 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 

725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Corporate Self-Evaluation - Question 2 (Provision 
and  Service Delivery)  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

5 - 32 

4. Adult Social Care Strategies   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

33 - 38 

5. Corporate Parenting Board Update   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

39 - 46 

6. Budget Update for Scrutiny Committee   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

47 - 54 

7. Forward Work Programme 2019/20   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

55 - 68 

8. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

9. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 



10. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair   
 
 

  
 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Councillors:  W R Smith (Chair) 
                     S Jago (Vice-Chair) 

  
 Councillors: G Richards, T Rogers, D Sammon and 

I Thomas 
 
Co-optees: E Davies 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Corporate Self-Evaluation - Question 2 (Provision 
and Service Delivery) 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Self-evaluation is a useful process that is rigorous and enables Chief Officers, Heads 

of Service and officers to be critically reflective about outcomes, service provision 
and leadership and management. 
 

1.2 Following a refocus exercise of documentation to ensure it continued to meet the 
organisation’s needs; the Council’s Corporate Management Team (CMT) approved 
the re-introduction of the corporate self-evaluation process in May 2019.    
 

1.3 Completion of the process is undertaken in ‘bite-sized’ chunks on a question-by-
question basis.  This aims to support all officers involved to contribute to the process 
whilst maintaining their ability to manage multiple other priorities. 

 
1.4 This report focuses on the completion of the self-evaluation undertaken by the Chief 

Officer: Learning and her teams in relation to Key Question 2 (Provision and Service 
Delivery).  The response directly relates to the Best Start to Life theme laid down in 
the Council’s Corporate Plan: Focus on the Future. 
 

1.5 This report and its appendices highlight the key findings of the self-evaluation 
activity; outline areas of good practice along with areas for development; and 
identifies the priorities for improvement, which will be developed into a Business 
Improvement Plan. 

 
 

Date Written 23rd December 2019 

Report Author Lisa Curtis Jones 

Service Area Social Services 

Committee Date 21st January 2020 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 Committee Members are requested to review the documentation and key findings 

following completion of Key Question 2 of the process.  
 
2.2  Committee Members to review and scrutinise the evaluative judgements provided by 

officers within the report identified through completion of the self-evaluation process. 
 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Self-evaluation is a business process that is rigorous and enables organisations to 

be critically reflective about outcomes, service provision and leadership and 
management.  In 2013/14, the Council introduced a self-evaluation process, which 
was completed by officers at Head of Service level.  The format of the challenge 
sessions was based on high-level challenge in a session lasting 2-2½ hours; with a 
number of Heads of Service. 

 
3.2 From using lessons learned over previous years, the format of the challenge of self-

evaluation was developed (e.g.) self-evaluation was undertaken on a service-level 
basis; with challenge being offered a Performance Board consisting the Chief 
Executive, Directorate Lead; Portfolio Member and the Chair of the Scrutiny 
Committee to which the service reported.  The key outcome of the process was to 
identify areas of good practice; along with priorities for improvement. 

 
3.3 In 2019, a refocus exercise was undertaken to ensure the self-evaluation documents 

continued to meet the organisation’s needs (e.g.) offered officers completing the 
forms opportunity to outline the current service position; highlight any good practice; 
note areas for development and to identify the services’ priorities for improvement. 
The documents were organised in the form of 3 key questions: 

 Outcomes; 

 Provision and Service Delivery; and  

 Leadership and management. 
 

There was no specific order in which the questions needed to be completed, as long 
as all three questions were completed within the year. 

 
3.4 Following consideration of the updated documents by the Council’s Corporate 

Management Team (CMT); the new format was approved for re-introduction in May 
2019. 
 

3.5 As part of the process cycle supporting the delivery of the self-evaluation process 
(see Appendix 1), it was proposed that completed questions should be presented 
before the sector-specific scrutiny committee, which normally scrutinises the 
outputs/outcomes for the relevant service area.  This was seen as an opportunity for 
Committee Members to review and explore facets of the wide range of activities for 
which Chief Officers were accountable; whilst for services, it was seen as an 
opportunity for details of their services to be brought before scrutiny to outline 
positive practice and achievements along with any challenges faced and areas for 
development. 
 Page 6



3.6 Committee Members are asked to review the content of the completed questions 
and consider performance, areas of good practice, areas for development and, 
perhaps most importantly, the services’ priorities for improvement for the coming 
year.  Scrutineers’ feedback will be used when considering how these priorities will 
be progressed. 

 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1  In previous years, the Council had undertaken self-evaluation activities annual basis 

on a service-by service basis.  The process required Heads of Service to review 
project/programme activity and reflect on what had been achieved, as well as 
identifying what needed to be prioritised next with a view to planning how should be 
done. 

 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 Judgement: Good  

 
5.2  In the past few months we have been completing our self-evaluation for Social 

Services in relation to Provision and Service Delivery. The areas covered are 
Children and Adult Services. The self-evaluation document in relation to this area  
(Question 2) is attached at Appendix 2. It covers the relationships between in-house 
partners and external partner relationships. The latter having developed considerably 
over recent years with the introduction of the Regional Partnership Board (RPB). 
 

5.3  Within Social Services we work with a wide range of corporate services to ensure we 
provide good service delivery to the people of Merthyr Tydfil. 

 
5.4 Both Adult and Children Services are in agreement that there are good working 

relationships with Accountancy/Finance, Insurance, Print, IT, Procurement, Health 
and Safety, Welsh and equalities and Complaints. These services provide a good 
service and provide information that assists us in operational matters and providing a 
service day to day. Much of this good work is built on well- established relationships 
with individual staff. 

 
5.5 In respect of Human resources, Business Change, Legal Services, Performance 

Management, Admin, and Communications the feedback is mixed. In general the 
relationships are good within the services but services being provided in a timely 
manner can be an issue due to capacity within these areas. Over the past few years 
due to efficiencies departments have seen reduction in staffing, which then reduces 
capacity within these resources and then impacts on the service being offered. All 
these service areas are an important and essential part of providing a good services 
in general. Both Admin and Performance management use to sit within the Social 
Services directorate so relationships were stronger and the assistance given and 
information provided more detailed and tailored to meet social service’s needs. 
These services have now been centralised corporately and therefore has changed 
the service we receive. In respect of Business Change support has always been 
good when we have a dedicated officer dealing only with Social Services as they 
learn the business and understand the service area to enable better support to be 

Page 7



offered. On saying that we do have good support in respect of the Scrutiny reporting 
and assistance around the self evaluation process to assist in meeting deadlines. 

 
5.6 Over the past year to eighteen months relationships have improved with Housing 

Colleagues and benefits section, and there have been various joint projects to assist 
foster carers and care leavers due to working closely together. Communication is 
much improved across these services, which enables a better and joined up 
approach to working with people. 

 
5.7  In respect of collaboration and partnership working there are a number of joint 

initiatives across Adults and Children Services: 
 

o The Regional Partnership Board 
o The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board 
o Regional Adoption Service 
o Cwm Taf Youth offending Service 
o Regional front Door for Fostering 
o Emergency Duty Team  
o 4C’s Commissioning Framework 
o Joint Equipment Store 
o Social Care workforce Team 
o Stay Well @ Home 
o Joint Learning Disability Commissioning group 
o Transformation Steering Group 

 
 
5.8 In line with the requirements of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act many of the 

services to support adults are now being planned on a regional basis with the health 
& social care partners within the Cwm Taf Morgannwg footprint. Development in the 
regional working has been assisted by the introduction of the ICF funding has 
allowed some innovative working across the region. This funding continues and we 
have seen more investment within children services this year, which will have a 
positive impact on our young people. 

 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 We want strong working relationships with our partners and working together will 

provide improved and sustainable services for the public. The plans we have drawn 
up need to be operational and resources provided to meet needs. 

 
6.2 We want to provide services in a timely manner, and provide information and advice 

and assistance when required. Many of the innovations this year have been 
focussed on Early Intervention and Prevention and providing services to children and 
adults in a timely manner.  

 
6.3 Improve outcomes for people across Merthyr Tydfil. We want them to live 

independent, healthy and fulfilled lives.  
 
6.4 We need good internal processes and support regards Performance Management 

information. We have new social services performance measures in the New Year 
and we need capacity in the team to enable us to be prepared for these changes and 

Page 8



ensure that programmes re available on WCCIS. The team have been undertaking a 
review of capacity in recent weeks and this needs to be a priority in the next few 
weeks.  

 
6.5 We need to enhance and improve relationships with Education and the Wellbeing 

Service to ensure we are providing services in a timely manner. ICF and IFST 
funding has assisted us in developing the Early Help Hub and the Supporting Family 
Change team and we need to work collaboratively on the early Intervention and 
Prevention Agenda. These teams are still in their infancy and will be further 
developed in the next year. 

 
6.6 In recent months we have managed to secure funding for extra capacity within some 

of the teams through grant monies. We would like to see the reduction in the 
bureaucracy for recruitment to ensure we use the grant appropriately and get 
support in the teams as soon as possible. 

 
6.7 Work with business support to complete a capacity assessment and reduce reliance 

on single points of dependency in certain areas. As part of this work we need to 
consider the role of admin within social services and the additionality they bring to 
the service. 

 
6.8 Develop further our regional plans around dementia and improvements to day 

services. Also looking at developing alternative models of community based 

accommodation that enable people to remain in the community with support. We are 

currently working with housing colleagues on this proposal. 

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 We will continue to work regionally across Cwm Taf Morgannwg to develop services 

and consider areas where there can be future collaboration. 
 
7.2 We will work regionally on the transformation agenda with health colleagues, building 

on the success of Stay Well @ Home and looking at the second phase of the 
service. 

 
7.3 Complete the capacity assessment and consider our single points of dependency 

and consider what areas should be prioritised to take forward. Work with colleagues 
in business change to assist with this.  

 
7.4 Workshop set up for January to look at working alongside Education in respect of 

wellbeing and the Early Help Hub. 
 
7.5 Work underway with regards the structure of the Performance Management team 

and developing a plan for the new performance measures. 
 
7.6 Within children services we need to continue the good work, developing the Early 

Help Hub, and Supporting Change team. We also need to make progress with the 
development of the emotional Well-being Service for Children Looked After and the 
Pathway to Work for care leavers.  
 
 Page 9



8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 The corporate self-evaluation process is based around the services/activities 
delivered and should reflect the contribution made in relation to the four wellbeing 
objectives set down by the Council in focus in the Corporate Wellbeing Plan.   

 
8.2 This report specifically links to the Living objective within the Council’s Corporate 

Wellbeing Plan: People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 

8.3   Through completion of other self-evaluation responses; we will also be able to 
demonstrate our team’s contribution to support progress against the following 
objectives: 
 

 Children and young people get the best start to life and are equipped with the 
skills they need to be successful learners and confident individuals; 

 People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the needs of 
businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure making Merthyr Tydfil an 
attractive destination; and 

 Communities protect, enhance and promote our natural environment and 
countryside 

 

 
 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES 
CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN’S 

SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 10



 
 

Self-Evaluation Process Cycle: 4 months x 3 
 
 
    Internal challenge      External challenge 
 
 
 
 
 

                  
          
     

SER Question # 
Evidence and 
judgment 

 ESLT              

 CRPPH             According to 

 SMB                CO structure 

 SLT 

 TBC 

Scrutiny 

SER  

Question # 
SER  

Question # 

SER  

Question # 

On completion of the 3 key questions; thematic Performance 
Board sessions would be scheduled in Months 12-13 - here there 

would be challenge on the overall position statement 

Months  
1-2  

Month 3 

Month 4 

Months  
5-6  

Months  
9-10  

Month 7 Month 11 

Month 8 Month 12 

Appendix 1 

P
age 11



Performance Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Analysis of commonalities     Report to CMT to identify support needed to drive 
improvement 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BEST START 
 
Overall Position 
Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

WORKING LIFE 
 
Overall Position 
Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
WELLBEING 

Overall Position Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

LIVING WELL 
 
Overall Position 
Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for 
Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

 

SUMMONING 

CIRCLE 

Best Start 

Working Life 

Environmental Wellbeing 

Living Well 

Finance & 
Accounting 

HR & Legal 

ICT 

Corporate Communications 

Page 12



Page 1 of 19 
 

Appendix 2 

Issue Date  Version  History of Changes  Approval  

13.12.2019 1.0 Agreed updates from Internal Challenge held on 13.12.2019. 
Sian Lyons-
Nicholas  

16.12.2019 2.0 Children’s Services  Edit 16.12.19 AL 

23.12.2019 3.0 Lisa Curtis Jones - Checked LCJ 

10.01.2020 4.0 Added definition of judgements to the template (page 3). 
Sian Lyons-
Nicholas 

 
 

   

    

  

Page 13



Page 2 of 19 
 

            

                                                               

Question 2:  Provision and Service Delivery 

Social Services – Master  

SUMMARY STATEMENT - Overview 

 
 

 

 

2.1 How well does the service engage with corporate support 
services to help improve service provision and delivery? 

< Adequate 

2.2 How well does the service understand and take advantage of 
opportunities for collaboration and partnership working? 

<Good > 

2.3 How well does the service understand and use the 
sustainable development principle (the five ways of 
working)? 

<Adequate > 

 LIVING WELL OVERALL JUDGEMENT <GOOD > 

 

Area Self-Evaluation ratings for Question 2 of the SER 

 Children’s  Adults 
Q2.1 Good Adequate 

Q2.2 Good  Good 

Q2.3 Adequate Good 

Overall Area 
Judgement 
Question 2  

Good  Good 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Merthyr Tydfil County 

Borough Council 

 

Self-Evaluation Report  

Question 2: Provision and Service Delivery 

Governance (for Performance & Scrutiny use only) 

                  Date: 

Form completed and received:  28/10/2019      

Internal challenge - session:   17/12/2019                                                                

Corporate Management Team session:         21/01/2020                                      

Reviewed at Scrutiny:           21/01/2020 

Page 14



Page 3 of 19 
 

Definition of Judgment – Local Indicators: 

In some instances, we are unable to compare an indicator with other local authorities in Wales.  When this occurs; 

local targets set should be considered in conjunction with the judgement definitions listed below to enable officers 

to assign a judgement 

EXCELLENT Very strong, sustained performance and practice. 

GOOD Strong features, although minor aspects may require improvement 

ADEQUATE and needs 

improvement 

Strengths outweigh weaknesses, but important aspects require 

improvement 

UNSATISFACTORY and needs 

urgent improvement 
Important weaknesses outweigh strengths 

 

 

REMEMBER:  

When completing your form, please try to be evaluative rather than descriptive and focus on the impact and 

outcomes for people and the environment.  In your evaluation identify what you consider to be strengths and areas 

for improvement and be brief, referencing the supporting evidence.  Responses should consider the requirement to 

demonstrate the five ways of working; (e.g.) capture the requirements and contributions of collaborative working 

arrangements etc. 

Please Note: 

Evidence supporting the judgments recorded in response to Question 2.3 can be attached: this should be labelled as 

Appendix 1 

 

  

Page 15



Page 4 of 19 
 

QUESTION 2:  PROVISION & SERVICE DELIVERY 

 
     
     

Question 2.1:  How well does the service engage with corporate support services to help improve service provision 
and delivery? 
 
 
 

 
GOOD 

     

EVALUATION: When answering the question, consider the following: 
 

 The quality and frequency of contact with support services; 

 Whether the support received enabled the service to improve provision and delivery 

 

 
 
 

 
 
Children’s Services 
In order to deliver our services, Children’s Services need to continually improve engagement with internal and 
external partners.  In this section, we highlight the areas of business that demonstrate our working across council 
departments. 

 Legal and democratic Services  
Children’s Services– GOOD - The Public Law Outline is central to our work, providing the formal focus for our 
discussions with parents on the edge of care. We have recently improved the process. We engage regularly 
with legal advisers for families in care proceedings. Children’s Services provides regular reports to Cabinet, 
Council and Scrutiny Committee, and responds to Cllr queries and questions. 
 
Adult’s - MIXED – the relationships between legal and adult services are varied dependent upon the nature 
of the contact. Examples of where adult services work closely with legal services include application to the 
court of protection (COP), contractual issues with procurement and individual service user issues. Recently 
our experience in terms of applications to the COP could have been more effective. This has been due to 
limited experience within both the social work team and the legal department as this is an emerging area of 
work. Potentially our working relationship could be improved through greater understanding of the SSWB 
Act, COP and the practicalities of their applications to social work practice.                           
 

 HR  
Children’s Services – MIXED -   Policies and procedures are helpful, up to date and in place.  Advisers are 
contactable and always helpful.  Workforce development support has been valuable during a period of 
change.  Understanding that capacity is an issue, we have experienced challenges in accessing agency staff 
when required. Moratorium process is unnecessarily bureaucratic and causes delay – should be a digital 
process for that. Online application form is a barrier to recruitment.   
 
Adult Services – MIXED -In line with the reduced capacity within the HR team over a number of years 
Managers responsibilities for some of the HR elements have increased. Whilst there are a suite of policies 
available on the intranet to draw upon for information there are occasions where the interpretation of the 
guidance can differ dependent on the HR advisor. 
The recruitment of staff is an area that creates pressures within the service. This is due to the process in 
seeking agreement to advertise posts being extremely bureaucratic and the requirement that all posts need 
to be advertised internally in the first instance even though it is known that there are no staff currently 
working in the organisation who have the relevant qualifications. An example of this has been the 
recruitment of Community Occupational Therapy staff where the posts have been advertised internally prior 

JUDGEMENT

: 

Current Position: 

Page 16



Page 5 of 19 
 

to external advert even though there are no staff who a qualified other than those currently employed 
within the service. 
The reduction in capacity within the HR service has meant that the response times have increased and an 
example of this can be the time that it takes to obtain a Job Evaluation of any new posts.  
 
 

 Business Change  
Children’s Services - MIXED - In line with strategic development, children’s services seek support and ‘critical 
friend approach’.  Whilst there has been support available, it should be acknowledged that corporate 
priorities mean that capacity for supporting children’s services strategic developments has been less 
available. Also we have noticed that prior arrangements where business change capacity dedicated to the 
service by officer with intrinsic interest in the service were more effective. Also in case of exploring 
challenges with WCCIS work was planned without informing or involving us as users.  
 
Adult Services – MIXED - Working relationships between adult services and business change are dependent 
on the allocated officer from their team. We have seen an improvement where there have been dedicated 
officers to work within the social services arena. Having business change officers sited within corporate 
services does mean that their priorities can be redirected which can mean that our ability to meet our 
targets / timescales is affected. 
 

 Admin  
Children’s Services – MIXED -our business is highly dependent upon high quality business coordination to 
maintain safe and reliable processes and systems in management of information and WCCIS, child 
protection, looked after children systems.  This has been challenging, and efficiencies have led to less 
effective services leading to social workers needing to spend more time at their desk than is desirable given 
our need to work with families 
 
Adult Services – MIXED - We have seen a reduction in administrative support across adult social care. Where 
support exists it is spread across a number of areas / services and geographical locations supporting 
individual teams. There is no senior admin post(s) within adult services and management of administration 
staff is via children’s and corporate services.  
 
 

 Accountancy and Insurance:  
Children’s Services – GOOD- the service consumes a significant value of council resources. Close working is 
required in order to develop the most accurate MTFP possible, to plan well in the shorter term and longer 
term and highlight areas of in-year risk. 
 
Adult Services – Good -There are set monthly meetings between service managers and dedicated members 
of the accountancy section to review the expenditure to date and monitor the projected impact of this on 
the end of year spend. Budget challenge is provided throughout the financial year in order to ensure that 
financial control is managed as effectively as possible.  
Effective joint working between social care and the accountancy team has increased in importance in recent 
years in line with the reduction in budget allocation and the increased need to work within the financial 
resource available. Areas that will impact on the future funding of areas such as legislative changes are 
factored into the medium term financial plan as far as is practicable, however it is not always viable to 
identify some areas of demand that are unknown such as high cost placements stepping down from 
specialist health placements. In order to attempt to mitigate some of this unknown risk indicative costs of 
high cost packages of care or placements are included in the medium term financial plan. 
The working relationships are well established and are working well with each having a good working 
knowledge of each other’s roles, however there is an overreliance on key individuals which can create 
difficulties when they are absent from work for any reason. 
As a result of the continued reduced settlement for the Local Authority there has been an increased focus on 
ensuring budgets are kept within the financial envelope and opportunities to reduce costs. 
 

Page 17



Page 6 of 19 
 

 Print and Design  
Children’s Services - GOOD - there has been positive results in our work when colleagues have designed 
products that are for public readers. 
 
Adult Service – GOOD - when we require items to be printed this is done effectively and efficiently. However 
our use of print is infrequent.  
 

 Corporate Communications  
Children’s Services – MIXED-Capacity is the chief issue here. We would like to develop closer working around 
key days e.g. carers celebration day etc.  Response to request for assistance by regional fostering front door 
have been slower than we’d like. Staff have requested more communication.  
 
Adult Services – MIXED -Relationships could be improved with clearer guidance on the role of corporate 
communications team and their capacity to respond to requests.  
 

 Internal Audit  
Children and adult Services – POOR we recognise that there is work on our part to co-operated with the 
data base, and we have over relied on our in-service quality assurance process.  Work taking place January to 
get us up to speed. 
 

 Performance Management 
 
 Children’s Services – MIXED capacity is  the issue. Staff in the unit are dedicated and well skilled working                                                          
well with us. Changes to the lead role have been made with prediction of inefficient outcomes resulting in 
delays in reporting, exposing children’s services at partnership fora.  
 
Adult Services – Good but capacity an issue - Adult Social Care has key performance indicators set by Welsh 
Government which are reported annually. For several years there has been a drive to move to a more 
paperless system of recording information. In recent years the social care services have moved to the WCCIS 
system, this move has had a significant impact on the work of the performance team and social care services 
and further development is required in this area. 
Welsh Government has been consulting on a suite of revised performance measures aligned to the Social 
Services and Wellbeing Act with a proposed implementation date of April 2020. This will require a 
considerable amount of development work within the system to capture the required data for reporting. 
There has been a significant reduction in the number of staff working within the team that supports the 
WCCIS system over several years which is now reached a critical level and placed greater reliance on a 
smaller number of key individuals to support they system.  
The risk to being able to report essential information is considerable and will be exacerbated by the 
introduction of the new performance framework. Work is currently being undertaken to identify potential 
options to mitigate this risk however a solution to manage this risk has not yet been finalised. 
 

 Complaints 
Adult Services- Good-Wherever possible complaints are dealt with and resolved at a service level on an 
informal basis to prevent escalation to formal complaints. There are agreed prescribed timescales for the 
response to a formal complaint submitted to the Local Authority in respect of social services and the 
complaints team are proactive in ensuring that managers are supported to adhere to the relevant 
timescales. 
There is a good working relationship between adult social care managers and the complaints team who work 
collaboratively to address any issues raised through the complaints process in order to seek a resolution to 
the complaint. 
 
Children’s Services GOOD – well supported with any complaints with update reports provided.  
 
 
 

Page 18



Page 7 of 19 
 

 Procurement 
Adult Services – Good - As the majority of social care services are commissioned rather than directly 
delivered by the Local Authority there is continued regular contact with the procurement team who provide 
advice and support through the procurement process and where there are contract issues that require 
addressing.  
 
Children’s Services GOOD - Positive support in  tender / contract process.  Always responsive to issues. 
 

 IT 
Children and Adult services GOOD – Forthcoming support and advice with challenges. Effective assistance 
with mobile working.  Good kit, responsive to any new queries.  
 

 HEALTH and SAFETY  
Children and Adult Services GOOD.  Helpful Reponses to risks identified.  
 

 WELSH and EQUALITIES  
 
Children and Adult Services GOOD - progress made with active offer, 3 welsh speakers in service and a 
number of learners.  

 

 
 
 

Children’s Services 
 

 Regular meetings with allocated accountant to monitor budgets 

 Regular meetings with legal  under Public Law Outline 

 Collaboration with Housing in developing new accommodation  with support options for care leavers 

 Close working with benefits and finance on revised offer to foster carers 

 Co-location in unit 5 and regular collaboration with WCCIS staff 

 Update reports  from complaints on open complaints and outcomes / learning  

 Early Help Hub brings together housing, prevention education 
 
 

 
Adult Services 
 

 Regular meetings with allocated accountant to monitor budgets 

 Weekly meetings with procurement as part of the commissioning process 

 Complaints team will work collaboratively with adult services and the complainant to reach an agreeable 
outcome 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Children’s Services 

 Launch of Early Help Hub  

 Publication of Care Leaver’s Strategy 

 Plan for young people to move into Housing First in January 2019 

 Improving performance in PI for 3 or more moves of placement  

Good Practice: 

Evidence: 

Page 19



Page 8 of 19 
 

 SOAP - Living Well 

 SOAP – Best Start 

 Sub SOAP – Children’s Services 

 Scrutiny Reports  

 Cabinet Reports 

 Full Council Reports  

 Case Studies 

 Corporate Strategies 

 Regional Strategies 

 Websites 

 Annual Performance Report 2018/19 

 Newspaper/Web Articles 

 Consultations / qualitative data  

 Events delivered 

 Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHB reports 

 Funding /Grants secured 

 Highlight reports 

 
Adult Services 
 

 Financial monitoring reports – Monthly 

 Performance reports – Adult Social Care – WCCIS system 

 Contracts 

 Service Level agreements 

 Complaints reports 
 SOAP - Living Well 

 Sub SOAP – Adults Services 

 Scrutiny Reports  

 Cabinet Reports 

 Full Council Reports  

 Case Studies 

 Corporate Strategies 

 Regional Strategies 

 Websites 

 Annual Performance Report 2018/19 

 Newspaper/Web Articles 

 Consultations / qualitative data  

 Cwm Taf Morganwg UHB reports 

 Funding /Grants secured 

 Highlight reports 

 Stay Well @ Home service reports 

 
 

  

Page 20



Page 9 of 19 
 

QUESTION 2:  PROVISION & SERVICE DELIVERY 

 
     
     

Question 2.1:  How well does the service engage with corporate support services to help improve service 
provision  
                           and delivery? 

 

 
 
 

Children’s Services 
 

 Enhance our partnership with well-being service and collaboration with education services 

 Improve understanding and evidence about need for admin support 

 Improve our compliance with the audit IT process 
 
 

Adult Services 

 Reduction in recruitment bureaucracy to enable recruitment of staff  

 Reduce reliance on single point of dependence in other areas 

 Enhance capacity within performance (WCCIS) team to improve availability and quality of performance 
data for social care. 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Children’s Services 

 Contribute to developing revised strategy for Focus on the Future and enhance availability of preventative 
services where gaps exist 

 Consider workshop with education services / schools to improve understanding of roles and identify any 
gaps / needs to development  

 Prepare business case considering evidence base for service needs for business coordination / admin 

 Complete the revised Transition Policy  

 Respond to new duties to looked after young peoples’ education associated with ALN reforms 
 

 
Adult Services 

 Enhance WCCIS team to support preparation for the new social services performance measures 

 Enhanced support to develop improvement plans within adult services. 
 

 
 

  

Areas for Development: 

Priorities for Improvement: 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



Page 10 of 19 
 

QUESTION 2:  PROVISION & SERVICE DELIVERY 

 
     
     

Question 2.2:  How well does the service understand and take advantage of opportunities for collaboration and  
                           partnership working? 
 
 
 

 
GOOD 

EVALUATION: When answering the question, consider the following: 
 

 Contribution to existing strategic partnership plans 

 Joint outcomes with other services 

 Existing regional collaborations 

 Partnership with the private or third sectors 

 Partnership with public agencies 

 Support for school improvement (2.2a – only Education to consider) 

 Support for vulnerable learners (2.2b – only Education to consider) 
 

 
 
 

Children’s Services 
Our commitment in partnership work is to be: 

 Present at the interface 

 Reliable at the interface 

 Lead on initiatives where there is a strategic need in congruence with our service strategy  

 Add value to both partnership business and our own service as a result  
 
The service is a member of the following collaborations and strategic partnership plans: 

Partnership  Note  Outcome  

Regional Safeguarding Board  
 

 Established by Social Services and 
Well-Being (Wales) Act 2014 

 Recent footprint change to include 
Bridgend  

 RCT Host 

 Includes governance for MASH 
 

 Improving multi-
agency  safeguarding 

 Hold  others to account 
for safeguarding 
practice and be held to 
account  

Regional Partnership Board 
(RPB) 

 Regional statement of 
strategic intent 

 Children’s work stream 
is gateway to accessing 
integrated care fund  
(Emotional well-being 
of is the priority ) 

 Established by Social Services and 
Well-Being (Wales) Act 2014 

 Recent footprint change to include 
Bridgend  

 
 

 Assess population need 

 Co-produce services 
for people with care 
and support needs 

 Look for opportunities 
for early intervention 
and prevention 

 Access to new funding 
steams via this forum 
including ICF 

Regional Adoption 
Collaboration  
 

 Vale, Cardiff, RCT and Merthyr 
Tydfil  

 Shortage of adopters  

 Discharge duties to 
children with a plan for 
adoption and to  assess 
and support adopters 

JUDGEMENT

: 

Current Position: 

Page 22



Page 11 of 19 
 

Regional Front Door for  
Fostering  

 Linked to National Fostering 
Framework 

 Aim to address shortage of MT 
foster carers 

 Financial host is RCT; Merthyr 
Tydfil is the location for the team  
 

 Increase supply of 
Merthyr Tydfil foster 
carers 

Cwm Taf Youth Offending 
Service  and  Management 
Board  

 RCT Host 

 Includes Health, Police, Probation, 
Education and Youth Services 

  Provide services under  
Crime and Disorder Act 
to young people who 
have committed crime, 
identify opportunities 
to  prevent 
involvement in criminal 
behaviour. Emphasis 
on well-being of young 
people  

Cwm Taf and Bridgend  
Emergency Duty Team  

 RCT Host   Provision of emergency 
social work service out 
of hours 

4CS Commissioning Framework   RCT Host 

 Commissioning Framework for 
placement for looked after 
children 

 Support with developing our 
Placement Commissioning Strategy 
and Market Position Statement  

 Emphasis on outcomes 
for young people 

  Market Management 
and cost reduction 

 Strategic planning in 
relation to availability 
of correct placement 
type 

 Support with contract 
and quality 
management  

 
Partnership working across the Authority 

 

 There are two established inter departmental provisions that the service is well invested in. These are 
Corporate Parenting Board and Safeguarding Steering Group. The former includes Councillor and Officer 
representation from across the Council aimed at ensuring the Council ‘does no less’ than what we would 
for our own children in relation to services for looked after young people. The second ensures that the 
Council discharges its duty to safeguarding across all Council departments.  

 Adult Services - MIXED - a key partner and work is under way on improving our arrangements for 
transition planning. We are making progress and there is further to go. 

 Education and Schools – MIXED - Our business makes education and schools a key partner given their 
involvement with all young people and their families. We communicate with designated lead teachers via 
the Peer Learning Circle. We would like to improve understanding of our services including the Early help 
Hub and contribute to relevant pieces of work  

 Housing –  GOOD - children’s services has engaged in the work that is under way to improve housing 
provision, highlighting the needs and duties for vulnerable young people and care leavers.  

 Tackling Poverty – MIXED the relationship between poverty, compromised parenting and high levels of 
CLA is well established.  Children’s services engage regularly with the relevant fora and commissioning 
arrangements under the grant schemes with a view to designing services that have maximum impact for 
vulnerable families. There are some areas   we would like develop such as SLA monitoring and reaching a 
shared understanding about access to preventative service for families with care and support needs who 
don’t require intensive intervention.    

Page 23



Page 12 of 19 
 

 Planning - GOOD as authorities develop their Placement Commissioning Strategies, and develop location 
assessment, so we are engaged in more discussions with colleagues, one of whom is joining the work with 
South Wales Police aimed at reducing the impact of missing children. We have been supported well in 
relationship to challenges linked to residential children’s homes 

 Estates – GOOD location of services and good management of the family centre.  

 Environment Act – we are being supported to develop our response to duties under this legislation 

 Council Tax, Housing Benefits and Benefits – GOOD we have worked with colleagues in this Council 
department to achieves reduction in Council Tax for care leavers; working towards revised offer for foster 
carers, and developing advice provision for care leavers 

 Public Protection –   GOOD Our work in domestic abuse and community safety (location assessment in 
criminal exploitation) means that we have important business in common with colleagues in public 
protection 

 
Adult Services 
 

Partnership  Note  Outcome  

Regional Safeguarding Board  
 

 Established by Social Services and 
Well-Being (Wales) Act 2014 

 Recent footprint change to include 
Bridgend  

 RCT Host 

 Includes governance for MASH 
 

 Improving multi-
agency  safeguarding 

 Hold  others to account 
for safeguarding 
practice and be held to 
account  

Regional Partnership Board 
(RPB) 

 Regional statement of 
strategic intent 

 Children’s work stream 
is gateway to accessing 
integrated care fund  
(Emotional well-being 
of is the priority ) 

 Established by Social Services and 
Well-Being (Wales) Act 2014 

 Recent footprint change to include 
Bridgend  

 
 

 Assess population need 

 Co-produce services 
for people with care 
and support needs 

 Look for opportunities 
for early intervention 
and prevention 

 Access to new funding 
steams via this forum 
including ICF 

Joint Equipment Board  Covers Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
footprint 

 RCT Host 
 

 Improved 
commissioning 
position 

 Resources are 
maximised (availability 
and recycle) 

  

Cwm Taf and Bridgend  
Emergency Duty Team 

 RCT Host  Provision of emergency 
social work service out 
of hours 

Transformation Steering Group   Joint Group all partners Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg Region 

 Implement new 
models of care across 
CTM region  
 

Joint Learning Disability 
Commissioning Group 

 Partnership group including LA, 
Health, Peoples First, Education 

 Implement improved 
services for people 
with Learning Disability 

Social Care Workforce 
Development 

 Partnership between MT & RCT  Social Care workforce 
are appropriately 
trained. 

 

Page 24



Page 13 of 19 
 

In line with the requirements of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act many of the services to support adults are 

now being planned on a regional basis with the health & social care partners within the Cwm Taf Morgannwg 

footprint. At this time the governance arrangements between the planning groups, senior managers and Regional 

Partnership Board are under review due to the revised regional footprint that now incorporates Bridgend. In line 

with the population needs analysis we have a Regional Statements of Commissioning Intent for Older People, and 

People with a Learning Disability, and Carers that outline the strategic direction and informs service development 

planning. 

There are a number of joint services and arrangements with RCT that are delivered on a regional basis which 

includes: 

 Emergency duty team – that works across 3 local Authorities to provide emergency social work cover 

during the times that offices are closed. 

 A regional Social Care training arrangement 

 A regionally commissioned domiciliary care contract 

 A regional Market position statement for care homes for older people and subsequent joint care home 

contract with Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHB. 

 A joint Stay Well @ Home service that supports the assessments of individuals at A&E to determine 

whether the person can be supported to return home rather than be admitted to hospital through the 

provision of a community support package. 

 

Work is currently underway through the transformation agenda to enhance community based services to support 

people to remain in the community. The Stay Well in Your Community initiative focusses on anticipatory care to 

prevent people moving into crisis with services aligned to the GP community clusters, the flexing of access times 

for a social care assessment by professionals up until 8 pm during the week and between 8.30am and 8 pm at 

weekends. This work is currently in the recruitment phase with an anticipated go live date of the end of January 

2020. This has required support from both accountancy and HR though the planning phase and this will continue 

through to the point of evaluation. 

The integrated Care fund has provided the opportunity to implement alternative models of care and enhance 

existing services to improve outcomes for individuals, examples of which are the Stay Well @ Home service and 

the implementation of the Dementia Care Matters Model of support for people with dementia that is currently 

being implemented in the Joint Health & Social Care Day Service sited at Keir Hardie Health Park. 

Adult Services has also been working collaboratively with colleagues in housing to develop alternative models of 

community based accommodation that enable people to remain in the community with support and an example 

of this is the dispersed housing model that supports people with mental health needs to step down from high cost 

placements. 

Work is also ongoing with wellbeing partners to enhance community based services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



Page 14 of 19 
 

 
 
 

 
Children’s Services 

 Regional Fostering Front Door - developing an attraction campaign for foster carers including the revised 
offer of council tax relief.  This collaboration is different in its location being in MT which has seen us 
adding value to our service  

 Business Case for ICF – the RPB praised MT children’s services   business preparation for the grant  
 
 

 

Example of Good  Practice Long 
Term 

Prevention Involvement Collaboration Integration 

Revised Offer to Foster 
Carers. Working across   
Housing Benefit, 
Accountancy, Fostering  

 
Yes 

 
Yes 

 
Yes ( consultation 
with foster 
carers) 

 
Yes  

 
Yes  

Early Help Hub :  working 
with providers,  well-being, 
education, schools, health 
housing and VAMT to  
improve information about 
early help services and 
identify opportunities to 
connect families to 
preventative services.  

 
Yes 

 
Yes 

 
Yes ( consultation 
with parents)  

 
Yes 

 
Yes 

Housing First and NLC ICF 
Bid: 
 Working with housing to 
develop a successful bid for 
a housing transformation 
grant for accommodation 
for vulnerable young 
people with high support 
needs.  Also developing ICF 
capital bid for 
accommodation with co-
locations of training and 
support in line with the 
Pathway to Work  

 
Yes 

 
Yes 

 
Yes ( care 
experienced 
young people) 

 
Yes 

 
Yes 

Pathway to Work  
 
Developing a corporate 
approach to early 
identification of care 
experienced young people 
who may be at risk of not 
being in education, 
employment and training.  
Builds on existing education 
process but develop 
opportunities for work 
experienced and 

 
Yes 

 
yes 

 
Yes ( care 
experienced 
young people) 

 
Yes 

 
Yes 

Good Practice: 

Page 26



Page 15 of 19 
 

traineeship within the 
Council  

Score (see section 2.3) 1.5 1.5 
 

1.5 1.5 1.5 

 

 
Adult Services 
The dispersed housing scheme has been developed with housing colleagues to support people with mental health 

support needs to step down from specialist placements into a supported community environment prior to moving 

to their own tenancy. This scheme has been effective in supporting a number of people to move out of 

institutionalised care. 

Example of Good  Practice Long 
Term 

Prevention Involvement Collaboration Integration 

Development of Stay Well @ 
Home service 

 
Yes 

 
Yes 

 
CTMUHB, MTCBC 
& RCTCBC 

 
Yes  

 
Yes  

Dispersed Housing Scheme Yes Yes Adult Social Care, 
Housing and 
Supporting 
People 

Yes No 

Implementation of Dementia 
Care Matters in Day support 
for people with Dementia 

yes yes CTMUHB, & 
MTCBC 

Yes Yes 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Children’s Services 

 Small increase in numbers of enquiries for foster carers  

 Improving foster carer retention  

 New Services – Supporting Change Team, therapy for looked after young people. 
 SOAP - Living Well 

 SOAP – Best Start 

 Sub SOAP – Children’s Services 

 Scrutiny Reports  

 Cabinet Reports 

 Full Council Reports  

 Case Studies 

 Corporate Strategies 

 Regional Strategies 

 Websites 

 Annual Performance Report 2018/19 

 Newspaper/Web Articles 

 Consultations / qualitative data  

 Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHB reports 

 Funding /Grants secured 

 Highlight reports 

 
 
 
 
 

Evidence: 

Page 27



Page 16 of 19 
 

Adult Services 
None 

 SOAP - Living Well 

 Sub SOAP – Adults Services 

 Scrutiny Reports  

 Cabinet Reports 

 Full Council Reports  

 Case Studies 

 Corporate Strategies 

 Regional Strategies Statement of Intent Older People & LD 

 Websites 

 Annual Performance Report 2018/19 

 Newspaper/Web Articles 

 Consultations / qualitative data  

 Events delivered 

 Cwm Taf Morganwg UHB reports 

 Funding /Grants secured 

 Highlight reports 

 Stay Well @ Home service reports 

 
 
 

QUESTION 2:  PROVISION & SERVICE DELIVERY 

 
     
     

Question 2.2:  How well does the service understand and take advantage of opportunities for collaboration 
and partnership working? 

 

 
 
 

At MASH and beyond we would like to see more integrated response with Police and Health professionals  
 
Opportunities to work collaboratively to achieve improved outcomes are taken as often as possible and this is 

evidenced in the examples above. A number of these have been outlined in the social services & wellbeing act as 

legislative requirements such as the pooled care home fund and market position statement whilst others have 

been in response to the availability of new regional funding opportunities. 

Although it is recognised that there is merit in joint working arrangements these continue to focus the legislative 

requirements and funding opportunities as opposed to all of our core functions. 

 

 
 
 

Children’s Services 

 

 Increase supply of Merthyr Tydfil foster carers and adopters available in the adoption collaboration region 

 Improve the access to therapies for looked after young people  
 
 
 
 
 

Areas for Development: 

Priorities for Improvement: 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



Page 17 of 19 
 

Adult Services 
 
There are a number of key joint developments that are already in progress such as the transformation agenda and 

the implementation of the Day Service developments that is taking a considerable amount of office time as there 

are no dedicated officers to implement these. In order to progress any further initiatives further officer resources 

will be required. 

Overall strategic direction will continue through the Regional Partnership Board and aligned to the Merthyr Tydfil 

priority of living well planning. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 29



Page 18 of 19 
 

QUESTION 2:  PROVISION & SERVICE DELIVERY 

 
     
     

Question 2.3:  How well does the service understand and use the sustainable development principle (the five ways of working)? 

NB:  Only complete the objective relevant to your area- leave the Corporate AREAS BLANK 

Ensure that you place a score in each of the 5 boxes: 0=no evidence; 0.5=some evidence but much to do; 1.0=good evidence but with development needs; 1.5 good 

evidence and embedded practice; 2.0 evidence of being an exemplar for others in this regard. See the Guidance document for a descriptor for each score. 

 Objectives and Corporate Areas of Change 
 

W
ay

s 
o

f 
W

o
rk

in
g 

 

Best Start to Life  Working Life 
Environmental 

wellbeing 
Living Well 

Corporate Support 
Services 

Across your 
corporate areas of 

change 

Long term    
Children’s - 1.5  

Adults - -1.5 
 

1.5 

Prevention    
Children’s - 1.5  

Adults - -1.5 
 

1.5 

Involvement    
Children’s - 1.5  

Adults - -1.5 
 

1.5 

Collaboration    
Children’s - 1.5  

Adults - -1.5 
 

1.5 

Integration    
Children’s - 1.5  

Adults - -1.5 
 

1.5 

 

NB:  Evidence supporting judgments ascribed to Question 2.3 can be in Appendix 1 (attached)

P
age 30



Page 19 of 19 
 

 

JUDGEMENT:   

Once you have assigned a score for each of the 5 ways of working RELEVANT to the Wellbeing objective that the 

service is accountable for, use the performance key below to provide a judgement.  For example, Long Term is 

scored 1.5 in the matrix the judgement is GOOD. 

 

Ways of working  Judgement (based on aggregated score) 

Long term GOOD  

Prevention GOOD 

Involvement GOOD 

Collaboration GOOD 

Integration GOOD 

 

 

SCORE JUDGEMENT  

2 EXCELLENT  

1.5 GOOD 

1 ADEQUATE and needs improvement  

0-0.5 UNSATISFACTORY and needs urgent improvement  

 

 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 
 
 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Adult Social Care Strategies 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report has been brought to Scrutiny Committee as part of the ongoing work with 

adult social services and its future development with a strategic viewpoint.  The 
report explains the journey to date and provides the current position and next steps 
in developing the service 

 
1.2 This is an update report for the ongoing strategic work in adult social care. 
 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 The judgements and evaluation are noted and debated. 
 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 A Strategy on a page was produced by the Chief Officer of Social Services and then 

further strategies were developed by each part of the service to compliment and 
show how their part of the service meets the strategic goals.  

 

3.2 The Strategy on a page is an evolving document with elements of the strategy 
spanning several years. 

 

3.3 In addition to the strategy on a page there are several regional strategies that are 
applicable to Adult Social Care that have been endorsed by Merthyr Tydfil CBC, 
these include: 

Date Written January 2020 

Report Author Angela Edevane 

Service Area Adult Social Services  

Committee Date 21st January 2020 

Page 33

Agenda Item 4



 

 Statement of Commissioning Intent for Older People. 

 Statement of Commissioning Intent for People with a Learning Disability. 

 Carers Strategy. 

 Valley Life. 

 Dementia Care Action Plan. 
 
 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 The key strategic documents outlined above set the direction for Adult Social Care in 

Merthyr Tydfil over a number of years and are all aligned to Merthyr Tydfil CBC’s 
“Focus on the Future” priority of “Living Well”. 

 
4.2 We last reported our position to scrutiny in September 2019 which indicated the 

following position: 
 

The key areas of work for Adult Services are: 
 

 We planned to implement the revised access hours for Adult Duty as part of the 
Stay Well @ Home development. 

 We planned to continue to work with Health colleagues to implement the 
extended community cluster teams. 

 We planned to continue to implement the Dementia Care Matters model of 
support for people with dementia within our joint day service. 

 We planned, dependent on the decision of Council in September, to implement 
the reduction in beds at Ty Gurnos and enable the transfer of services for people 
with a learning disability from Llysfaen to Ty Gurnos. 

 We planned to continue to work with Housing colleagues to progress the Extra 
Care development. 

 
4.3 In addition to our strategic priorities Adult Services will be working with colleagues 

across the council as part of the corporate sustainability work. 
 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 The overall performance indicators for 2018-19 have been submitted and 

demonstrate that there have been areas of improvement.  However in some areas 
there is uncertainty as to how much of this is attributable to increased performance 
and how much is attributable to enhanced recording.  Improved use of WCCIS was a 
priority area for Adults Services last year and this has been evidenced in the overall 
performance reporting.  The areas of note are indicated below. 

 
5.2 We have been successful as a region in securing Transformational Funding from 

Welsh Government and are now at the implementation phase of “Stay Well @ Home 
2” which includes extending the access times to the Social Care Single Point of 
Access (Duty) by other professionals to 8 pm each evening and from 8.30 pm till 
8 pm at the weekend.  It is anticipated that this will support people to remain at home 

Page 34



through the provision of targeted support at the right time.  Since the last report in 
September we have been recruiting staff to the positions required for implementation 
and have been successful in recruiting staff however we have not appointed to all 
the positions.  We anticipate that all staff will be in post in preparation for the go live 
position of February.  In addition to the recruitment of staff we have also been 
developing processes and preparing our data systems to record our evaluation 
information. 

 
5.3 The Transformation Fund has also been used to develop Enhanced Community 

Cluster Teams which are a combination of Health & Social Care professionals who 
will monitor and provide support to the most vulnerable  individuals earlier to prevent 
them escalating into a crisis position that would require hospitalisation.  We have 
appointed staff to support this initiative and are continuing to work with health 
colleagues in this area with an anticipated go live date of early April. 

 
5.4 The Valley Life initiative has progressed and we have been working with Dementia 

Care Matters and Health Colleagues to develop an integrated model of care in our 
day service for those individuals who have a dementia and secured funding to 
support this process in the coming year as part of the Dementia Care Action Plan.  In 
order to improve the environment within the older people’s dementia day service at 
Keir Hardie Health Park we have been successful in securing capital funding through 
the Integrated Care Fund.  Due to the delay in the confirmation of the funding this 
has not progressed as far as we had hoped but it is anticipated that the tender for 
the work will be out at the end of January 2020 with the work on site commencing 
before April 2020. 

 
5.5 In line with the Valley Life Initiative we have been working with Housing colleagues 

and Wales & West Housing Association to progress the plans for the development of 
an extra care housing facility.  This will be situated next to Keir Hardie Health Park 
which will enable greater access to the facilities and support available within the 
health park.  We have not progressed this as much as we would have liked which is 
due to the capacity within the Adult Services Management team to progress this, 
however we have re-established meetings with Housing colleagues. 

 
5.6 Following the consultation and approval by Council in September 2019 the number 

of placements at Ty Gurnos Newydd were reduced in December 2019 and the 
staffing structure has been aligned with the reduced number of placements. 

 
5.7 Scrutiny requested that Adult Services develop an Accommodation Strategy to 

support the transfer of the Learning Disability services from Llysfaen to Ty Gurnos 
Newydd.  This is near completion and will be completed in February 2020. 

 
5.8 Since scrutiny in September our services that support the independence of Older 

People have been inspected by CIW and the finalised report was published on 
8th January 2020.  We have commenced the development of an action plan to 
address the recommendations within the report and these will be reported 
separately. 

 
5.9 In addition to our planned strategies Adult Services has been: 

Page 35



 Working with the improvement support team to identify areas that can be 
enhanced. 

 Secured funding through the Area Planning arrangements to recruit a specialist 
Senior Social Worker to work with adults with substance misuse issues. 

 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 It is the intention that Adult Social Care continues to support people to have a voice 

and control over their lives and live in healthy and supportive resilient communities 
that enable them to live as independently as possible.  

 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 The key areas of work for Adult Services are: 

 Implement the revised access hours for Adult Duty as part of the Stay Well @ 
Home development. 

 Continue to work with health colleagues to implement the extended community 
cluster teams. 

 Continue to implement the Dementia Care Matters model of support for people 
with dementia within our joint day service 

 We will continue to work with Housing colleagues to progress the extra care 
development. 

 We will complete the Accommodation Strategy by February 2020 
 
7.2 In addition to our strategic priorities Adult Services will be working with colleagues 

across the Council as part of the corporate sustainability work. 
 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1 The projects within the MTCBC Change Programme will all be assessed against the 

Wellbeing Objectives as part of the business case development.  The 5 ways of 
working will be assessed as part of service delivery options going forward.  Changes 
will be assessed against the integrated impact assessment.  

 
 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES 
CABINET MEMBER FOR SOCIAL 

SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

Page 36



 

P
age 37



 

P
age 38



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 
Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Corporate Parenting Board Update 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This is the second Corporate Parenting Board Annual Report.  It provides information 

about the work of Corporate Parenting Board and our next steps in improving 
outcomes for looked after young people. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 Scrutiny Committee receive this report and raise any questions or challenge that might 

lead to improvements for care experienced young people. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1  When a child or young person becomes "looked after", the local authority has a 

responsibility to ensure that looked after children and young people experience the 
highest quality of care and opportunity and achieve outcomes that reflect each 
individual’s  greatest potential.   

 
3.2  This is known as "Corporate Parenting" and it is the collective responsibility of the 

Council to understand this. 
 
3.3  In Merthyr Tydfil we take our corporate parenting responsibilities seriously.  We are all 

collectively responsible for looked after young people and support continuous 
improvement of outcomes for our looked after young people. 

 
3.4  The Code of Practice for looked after and an accommodated child which has been 

published under the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 has defined the 
corporate parenting duty in s.400-401. 

Date Written January 2020 

Report Author Annabel Lloyd 

Service Area Children’s Services  

Committee Date 21st January 2020 

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



 
 
3.5  It is not just social services that impact upon these young people.  Once a child is in 

care all elected members and officers of the local authority, as corporate parents, need 
to be concerned about that child and must take the following principles into account 
when engaging with them and making any decision concerning them: 

 

 is this good enough for my own child? 

 does this provide a second chance if things don’t go as expected? 

 is this tailored to the child’s individual needs, particularly if they are more vulnerable 
than other children? 

 
3.6  This concern should encompass the child’s education, health and well-being; what 

they do in their leisure time and holidays; how they celebrate their culture; and how 
they receive praise and encouragement for their achievements.  This concern 
continues as the child becomes a young person and begins to prepare for the time 
when they leave care.  

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 This is the second report of its kind.  Last year’s report concluded recommendations 

that can be found in the table at 5.1 below alongside an update. 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 The table below updates progress against last year’s recommendation: 
 

Recommendation Progress as at  10.01.20 

Celebrate the success of our looked 
after young people 
 

Achieved.  Celebration event took place in 
November 2019, in line with young people’s 
wishes.  

Continue to involve care experienced 
young people in our work and receive 
reports from IROs about the views of 
younger looked after young people. 

Partially Achieved.  We have carried forward 
a summary of young people’s views in this 
report, Care Leaver’s Strategy:  Make your 
Own Decision, and in the Placement 
Commissioning Strategy.  IROs have been 
asked to re-design data couture systems in 
order to bring forward themes from young 
people’s views to inform service improvements.  
There has been regional collaboration in pursuit 
of learning more about ‘what works’ and the 
contract with Voice From Care who run our 
participation group will be reviewed for 2020-
21. 

Improve stability by increasing the supply 
and skills of foster carers and suitable 
placements that are close to home. 
 

Progress has been made.  The Placement 
Commissioning Strategy has been completed 
and related action reviewed. It will take some 
time to see a suitable supply of Merthyr Tydfil 

Page 40



foster carers being available for all our looked 
after young people.  

Increasing the capacity of  leaving care 
services given the age profile of our 
looked after young people, ensuring that 
the support they provide is in line with the 
views expressed  at the Care Leavers’ 
Conference. 
 

Progress has been made.  New provider in 
place and increased resources have been 
made available to extend the personal adviser 
service to those up to 25 years who wish to take 
it up.  Close working with Housing colleagues 
has increased the availability of 
accommodation with support, Housing First 
opens end of this month and further work is 
underway on a second project.  Some 
individual care leavers have benefitted from 
intense support when they need it most.  ICF 
funding has been secured to deliver support 
required under the Pathway to Work.  However, 
further work is required under the 
implementation of the Action plan linked to 
Make Your Own Decision. 

Enhance access to services for 
improving the emotional well-being of 
looked after young people. 

Progress has been made.  RPB task and 
finish group agree specification – meeting 
planned for February. 

Whilst children in Special Guardianship 
arrangements are not looked after – there 
is a need to enhance the support 
arrangements to prevent re-entry to the 
looked after system. 

Achieved.  We will need to keep this under 
review. The Special Guardianship Policy has 
been reviewed and a new process is in place 
linked to the Early Help Hub.  ICF funding has 
been secured for a post to develop support for 
Special Guardians and their families.  

Implement the Pathway to work, and 
employment options for care leavers 
within the Council. 
 
Invite Council departments to report 
quarterly on their involvement with looked 
after young people and carer leavers. 
 
 

Progress has been made.  Corporate 
Management Team have supported the 
development of the Pathway to work, a final 
draft of which will be available later this month 
for sign off at Corporate Parenting Board in 
March 2020.  The initiative will see all Council 
departments look for opportunities for work 
experience, or traineeship within their 
departments or care experienced young 
people.  
 
In year colleagues in Housing Benefit and 
Finance have supported the Regional 
Development Manager for the National 
Fostering Framework in the work leading up to 
the enhances offer to Merthyr Tydfil Foster 
Carers. 

Improve and re-launch our arrangements 
for transition planning. 
 

Progress has been made.  Documents will be 
brought to March 2020 Corporate Parenting 
Board for sign off. 

  
5.2 We have included here key features of the Corporate parenting Board Annual Report 

for 2018-90. 

Page 41



 
 
 
5.3 Here are some of the important messages from young people about our service: 
 

Good Practice Poor Practice 

Take time to get to know us for who  we  really  are; 
speak to us like young adults 

Base your knowledge of us only from reading records ; talk to 
us like a bossy parent  

Involve us in  new experiences  Leave me to my own devices  
Keep in touch, keep in touch more when I need extra 
help 

Only doing the minimum you have to 

Believe  in us and  fight our corner  Going through the motions of what is expected … visits, write 
ups, reviews and reports… with no  intrinsic interest in who I 
am and my well-being 

When talking to us keep it real,  be straight forward and 
say things as they are 

Avoid giving negative information  because  you don’t want to 
upset somebody or make promises that cannot be kept 

Understand that because of our experiences, we  need 
second chances; we don’t always have family and 
friends we can call on 

Criticise young people for ‘bad behaviour’ or not taking 
responsibility;  blame us for repeat mistakes 

Check out how the service is going once in a while with 
care leavers, involve us in service developments 

Assume everything is going well because you haven’t been 
told otherwise 

 
5.4 Care experienced young people from Merthyr Tydfil also took part in Listen Act Thrive 

which is published by NSPCC.  During this consultation care experienced children and 
young people informed researchers that they are not receiving the emotional and 
mental health support they need.  This is an issue that young people have also talked 
about with Corporate Parenting Board.  Key issues identified during the consultation 
include: health assessments, access to services, training, and multi-agency working.  
Here are some of the young people’s views that were included in this piece of work: 

 

 Went to doctors and went straight to antidepressants. 

 “[There is] more stability for a young person if carers understand behaviours that 
may come with mental health. 

 Professionals (should) work together so young people don’t have to repeat their 
story.  We are not troubled teenagers, it’s what we have been through. 

 
5.5 Last year, we saw an increase in the numbers of looked after young people to 198 at 

year-end.  The national comparative data puts the authority as having the third highest 
number of looked after children per 10,000 capita in Wales, followed by RCT with the 
4th highest and Bridgend with the 5th highest. 
 
A deep dive of cases linked to the significant increase during 2018-19 points to the 
following factors: 
 

 Increase in demand at front door of high-risk cases where preventative work would 
not have been a safe and viable option. 

 Improvement work that identified a cohort of cases where there was no alternative 
other than for the Authority to safeguard the children by looking after them. 

 
 

Page 42



 
 

5.6 Reassuringly, at quarter 2 end 2019-20 we have noted a reduced demand for looked 
after services and the rate of which children have become looked after has reduced 
by 50%. 
 

Date Number of looked after young people 

31.03.15 163 

31.03.16 141 

31.03.17 145 

31.03.18 156 

31.03.19 198 

 
5.7 Looked After Young People experiencing 3 or more moves  

There was a small decrease in the number of looked after young people who 
experienced 3 or more placement moves to 12.6%.  Improving performance, and an 
achievement given a significant increase in demand and complexity.  However, this 
result is in the highest quartile in the national comparison and we have plans for 
improvement.  At the time of writing we are on target for a result of 10% for 2019/20 
which should bring us closer to the welsh average of 10%. 
 

Date % of CLA experiencing 3 or more moves 

31.03.15 6.1% 

31.03.16 9.22% 

31.03.17 11.72% 

31.03.18 13.46% 

31.03.19 12.63% 

 
5.8  Exits – returning home 

The authority has a high rate of number of looked after young people who return home.  
National data published for 2018-19  identifies the welsh average as being 9.6% of the 
overall population of looked after young people returning home,  with Merthyr Tydfil 
recording a result of 15.2% putting us in the higher quartile for performance. 

 
5.9  Age Range Profile as at 31.03.18 and at 31.03.19 

The increase noted here reflects the increase in the overall population.  Bulk increase 
is in the lower age range reflecting our ambition to make the right decision at the right 
time in order to improve longer term outcomes for children and young people.  Despite 
our concern about the increasing numbers, it is encouraging to see this change in the 
age ranges.  This should not distract from the implications of having over 50% of our 
looked after population in the 10 years plus age range which is good intelligence for 
planning future services for older looked after young people and care leavers.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



Age  Numbers of looked after 
young people in age range  
as at 31.03.18 

Numbers of looked after 
young people in age range  
as at 31.03.19 

0-4 years old 34  56 (+22) 

5-9 years old 22 35 (+13) 

10-14 years old 55 61 (+6) 

15 -18 years old 45 46 (+1) 

 
5.10  Placement Type as at 31.03.18 and 31.03.19 

Family placement by placement within the family network or with foster carers is the 
lead model of provision for looked after young people in Merthyr Tydfil.  This is 
reflected in the break down below where  we can see that 172 children looked after 
are in family placement made up of Kinship Care (43), Merthyr Tydfil Foster Carers 
(62), and Independent Foster Care (45).  The increase in demand for residential care 
is associated with an increase in the number of young people whose need cannot be 
met in family placement, this has been the source of particular concern given the 
impact for the Council’s resources.  During 2019/20 we have implemented the Closer 
to Home project which has supported step down to lower dependency provision for a 
small number of young people. 

 

Placement Type  Numbers of looked after 
young people in 
placement type as at 
31.03.18 

Numbers of looked after 
young people in placement 
type as at 31.03.19 

Placed for 
Adoption 

1 3 

Kinship (Family/ 
Friends approved 
as foster carers) 

22 43 

Merthyr Tydfil 
Foster Carers 

26 62 

Independent 
Foster Care 
Agency 

44 45 

Placement With 
Parents  

23 22 

Independent 
living  

5 9 

Residential  8 14 

 
5.11 Care Leavers in Education Employment and Training  

During 2018-19, we saw a reduction in the numbers of care leavers who were in 
education, employment or training at 12 months after leaving care, this same figure 
improved for those at 24 months after leaving care, 70% of whom were in education, 
training and employment. 

 
 
 
 

Page 44



 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1  We want to make the following changes: 

 Reduce the number of looked after young people who have experienced 
unplanned placement moves. 

 Increase the number of looked after young people who are living close to home. 

 Improve the support available for care leavers to access housing, employment and 
training. 

 Develop the support that is available to help carers and looked after young people 
through the distress of trauma and separation. 

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1  Our looked after young people have made us proud again this year.  They really are 

outstanding people, being supported by inspirational carers and committed 
professionals. 

 
7. 2  It is clear that if we are to be able to meet the need of our looked after young people, 

focused work is required once more in the year ahead across the Council.  This work 
is summarised below and should be included in the Action Plan for the Strategy for 
Stability, Success and Transition with progress reports at Future Corporate Parenting 
Boards.  Corporate Parenting Board can help make a difference to the lives of looked 
after young people by agreeing to prioritise the Council’s resources to make the action 
plan a reality in delivering better experiences and improve wellbeing for looked after 
young people and care leavers: 

 

 Celebrate the success of our looked after young people. 

 Continue to listen to young people’s voices and involve them in service 
developments.  Re-design Independent Reviewing Officer systems to bring formed 
themes from young people’s views that will support service improvement.  

 Implement the Action Plan linked to the Placement Commissioning Strategy. 

 Support young people to achieve great educational outcomes and implement the 
requirements of the Additional Learning Needs Reforms.  

 Implement the Action Plan linked to Make Your Own Decision. 

 Re-launch and implement revised Transition Planning arrangements when they 
are finalised. 

 Enhance access to services for improving the emotional well-being of looked after 
young people. 

 Implement the Pathway to Work 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1  This area of business is located in the following wellbeing objective: 
 

People are empowered to live independently within their communities, where they are 
safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. 

 
 
 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER SOCIAL SERVICES 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES   
CABINET MEMBER FOR                

SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Corporate Parenting 
Board – Scrutiny Report 
2017-18 

January 2019 MTCBC Website 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  

No 

 

Page 46



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Budget update for Scrutiny Committee  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report is to provide an update on the social services budget. We are currently in 

Month 10 of the budget and at end of Quarter 3 2019/20 budget. The Month 7 position 
has been reported to date, which is included in this report. Last year we saw 
unprecedented growth in Social Services due to high demand in service delivery. 
There were increases in Children Looked After and within domiciliary care.  

 
1.2 In the past few years social services have been able to contribute to the efficiencies 

programme and we have worked with finance and business support team to consider 
efficiency savings now and in the future. 

 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 The content of this report to be discussed and noted. 
 
 

 
3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Scrutiny committee members requested that a report be presented to scrutiny looking 

at the overall Social Services budget and the areas of likely overspend. The last report 
was presented to Scrutiny in September, which reflected the budget position at month 
4 (July 2019). The report highlights the summary statement of the General Fund 

Date Written 8th January 2020 

Report Author Lisa Curtis-Jones  

Service Area Social Services 

Committee Date 21st January 2020 

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



Revenue Budget for 2019/20. Also provided is the areas of the budget that are 
overspending with the plans we have in place to try and mitigate this overspend.  
 

3.2 Budgets within social care can be unpredictable in the sense of the Looked after 
children rate can change, adults requiring support for their care needs. Safeguarding 
adults and children will always be a priority and these costs cannot be avoided. We 
will endeavour to support children, families and adults within the community and their 
own homes where possible but in some cases this is not possible. 

 
 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 We continue to face financial pressures and been working hard to achieve savings 

the Council needs whilst doing our best to ensure that the services we provide to you 
are not adversely affected. Last year Social Services were not in a position to 
contribute to the efficiency programme due to the increase in demand in the service.  

 
4.2 We have used the Integrated Care Fund over the past two years to plan and develop 

projects working across the region which will directly impact the public and provide 
better services. This funding has allowed the development of new initiatives like the 
stay well @ home service, which will reduce the delayed transfers of care from 
hospital and have better outcomes for the population of Cwm Taf. 

 
4.3 In the past two years there was investment in the regional adoption team and in the 

enhanced child in need service. The latter was hoped to reduce children looked after 
numbers. However we have seen an increase in the past year. Initially this strategy 
was successful with a reduction last summer to 131, however by end of November 
2019 the numbers had increased to 198. As previously discussed with scrutiny 
members we saw two peaks of children becoming looked after last year in August 
and October. Numbers have increased due to safeguarding concerns and needing to 
safeguard children. 

 
4.4 The anti-poverty steering group was set up to review and monitor the various grants 

that are available in Merthyr Tydfil, with a view to looking at the cross cutting themes 
between the grants and ensuring no duplication of service. Also looking at ways to 
improve preventative work with a view to decreasing the impact on statutory services 
where possible. 

 
4.5 A lot of our work is undertaken on a collaborative and regional basis which assists 

with cost pressures and assists with resilience of services. 
 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20 (As at 31 October 2019) 

People and Performance Directorate 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 48



General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20 (As at 31 October 2019) Table 1 
People and Performance Directorate 
    

  Estimate Outturn Year End 
Projection 

  
Summary 31-Oct-19 Month 7 Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

            
Social Services           
Social Care Services and Recharges           
Quality & Regulation Services 102 62 107 5 4.9 
Receivership 28 1 28 0 0.00 

  130 63 135 5 3.85 

            
Duty, IAA & ACT Compliance           
Out of Hours/Emergency Duty Services 71 -2 63 -8 -11.27 
IAA Duty Services 70 37 63 -7 -10 

  141 35 126 -15 -10.64 

            
Early Intervention and Assistance Services           
Carers Network 188 84 183 -5 -2.66 

  188 84 183 -5 -2.66 

            
Social Services Collaborative Partnerships           
Integrated Community Equipment Store (ICES) 169 124 169 0 0.00 
Cwm Taf Social Care Workforce Development 146 10 146 0 0.00 
Cwm Taf Youth Offending Services 280 -32 278 -2 -0.71 
Vale, Valleys & Cardiff (VVC) Regional Adoption Group 189 78 191 2 1.06 
Integrated Family Support Services (IFST) 280 13 237 -43 -15.36 
Delivering Transformation (Collaborative Regional Change 
Agenda) 62 -29 

 
33 -29 -46.77 

Cwm Taf Autism Service 0 0 0 0 0.00 
Deprivation of Liberty (DOLs) Services 74 14 79 5 6.76 
Cwm Taf Reflect Project 19 19 19 0 0.00 

  1,219 197 1,152 -67 -5.50 

            
Adult Social Services           
Adult Social Care           
Adult Services Management 81 38 71 -10 -12.35 
Social Care Client Service Strategies 24 124 22 -2 -8.33 
Health Park Building Costs 163 42 163 0 0.00 

  268 204 256 -12 -4.48 

            
Assessment & Care Management Services           
Social Work Team 1,163 681 1,164 1 0.09 

  1,163 681 1,164 1 0.09 

            
Initial Support Services           
ISS Management 69 40 69 0 0.00 
Initial Adult Services 231 132 230 -1 -0.43 
Initial Response Services 559 370 591 32 5.72 
Community Occupational Therapy 287 137 275 -12 -4.18 
Telecare / Telehealth Services (Assistive Technologies) 107 53 93 -14 -13.08 

  1,253 732 1,258 5 0.40 

            
Supported and Accommodation Services           
MTCBC Homes for the Elderly 1,737 1,133 2,047 310 17.85 
MTCBC Group Home (Llysfaen Fach) 931 467 830 -101 -10.85 

  2,668 1,600 2,877 209 7.83 

            
Day Care Services           
Outside/Community Based Activities 231 125 227 -4 -1.73 
Day Centres 1,022 575 1,016 -6 -0.59 
Transport 247 114 240 -7 -2.83 

  1,500 814 1,483 -17 -1.13 

Page 49



  Estimate Outturn Year End 
Projection 

  
Summary 31-Jul-19 Month 4 Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

            
Independent External Care Provision           
Supported Placements 3,079 2,070 3,073 -6 -0.19 
Shared Lives 350 145 373 23 6.57 
Independent Domiciliary Care 2,223 1,036 1,839 -384 -17.27 
Direct Payments 1,846 985 1,727 -119 -6.45 
Independent Commissioned Day Services 206 122 269 63 30.58 
Independent Residential Establishments (IRE's) 5,021 769 5,410 389 7.75 
Extra Care Facility 254 150 261 7 2.76 

  12,979 5,277 12,952 -27 -0.21 

            
Children Social Services           
Children's Social Care           

Children's Social Care 152 242 153 1 0.66 

            
Children with Disabilities           

Children with Disabilities 732 407 695 -37 -5.05 

            
Children Looked After           
Looked After Children Team 492 287 497 5 1.02 
Child & Family Team 836 433 831 -5 -0.60 
Looked After Children Educational Support (LACES) 170 86 167 -3 -1.76 
Fostering & Family Placement Team 473 240 476 3 0.63 
CLA Residential Placement Services 2,878 1,707 2,899 21 0.73 
CLA Fostering - Independent Fostering Agencies (IFA's) 1,741 982 1,935 194 11.14 
CLA Fostering - In House, Kinship & Emergency/Respite 
Fostering Services 1,529 

 
799 

 
1,383 -146 -9.55 

Children Looked After (Court, Legal & Professional) Services 134 120 206 72 53.73 
Leaving Care Support Services 581 250 636 55 9.47 
Adoption Services 109 59 104 -5 -4.59 
Advocacy Services 60 0 46 -14 -23.33 

  9,003 4,963 9,180 177 1.97 

            
Intake & Family Support Services           
Intake Team 430 212 406 -24 -5.58 
Specialist Family Support 25 19 26 1 4.00 
Supporting Change Services 665 347 652 -13 -1.95 
Support Other Than Looked After Services 811 497 857 46 5.67 

  1,931 1,075 1,941 10 0.52 

            
Youth Justice Services           

Youth Justice Services (LASPO) 0 0 0 0 0.00 

            
Safeguarding           
Merthyr Tydfil Safeguarding Unit 69 39 68 -1 -1.45 
Independent Safeguarding Services 121 71 156 35 28.93 
Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) 283 134 273 -10 -3.53 

  473 244 497 24 5.07 

            

Social Services Grant -642 -642 -642 0 0.00 

            
            

Net Expenditure Social Services 33,158 15,976 33,410 252 0.76 

      
 
 
  

Page 50



General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20 (As at 31 October 2019) Table 2 

Major Variances         

            

Ref. Budget Head Variance Variance Explanation Action Taken to 
address 

    £'000 %   

1 Integrated Family Support 
Services (IFST) 

-43 -15.36 Underspend from 2018/19 joint 
service received. 

No Further action 
required. 

2 Delivering Transformation 
(Collaborative Regional 
Change Agenda) 

-29 -46.77 Underspend from 2018/19 joint 
service received. 

No Further action 
required. 

3 MTCBC Homes for the 
Elderly 

310 17.85 Gurnos House currently has 14 
residents and Bargoed House 
23. 
Salary budgets are 
overspending. 
Income less than budgeted 
due to the number of residents 
and the number of self funders.  

Ongoing review with 
Home Manager, 
Principal Officer and 
Head of Service. This 
will be looked as a 
wider piece of work 
about the residential 
units (3 and 4) – 
reports previously 
been discussed at 
scrutiny. 

4 MTCBC Group Home 
(Llysfaen Fach) 

-101 -10.85 A reduction in staff hours 
employed due to needs and 
the number of residents 
currently living at home.  

Will continue to 
monitor.  

5 Independent Domiciliary 
Care 

-384 -17.27 Current demand for care hours 
lower than anticipated.  

Will continue to 
monitor.  

6 Direct Payments -119 -6.45 Full year affect from ending of 
7 Known. This is offset by 12 
additional packages above 
known service demand 
increases (-£60k).  Higher than 
anticipated recovery of 
balances (-£68k) 

Will continue to 
monitor.  

7 Independent 
Commissioned Day 
Services 

63 30.58 Additional financial burden is 
primarily from the part year 
effect of 3 new package of care 
and cost increases on known 
services. 

Will continue to 
monitor.  

8 Independent Residential 
Establishments (IRE's) 

389 7.75 Continuing increase in the 
number of residential 
placements within the 
Independent Sector (current 
population of 196) 

Will continue to 
monitor. 

9 CLA Fostering - 
Independent Fostering 
Agencies (IFA's) 

194 11.14 Budgeted for 45 IFA 
placements, currently 53 
placements.                                                                                                                                            

Will continue to 
monitor.  

10 CLA Fostering - In 
House, Kinship & 
Emergency/Respite 
Fostering Services 

-146 -9.55 Realignment of expenditure 
outside of fees. Mitigates 
pressures within Legal & 
Professional 

Will continue to 
monitor.  

11 Children Looked After 
(Court, Legal & 
Professional) Services 

72 53.73 Legal & Professional fees are 
currently projected to outturn 
higher than anticipated, due to 
higher Children Looked After 
levels 

Will continue to 
monitor.  

  
Page 51



12 Leaving Care Support 
Services 

55 9.47 Ongoing need to support Care 
Leavers through Independent 
Living Step Down placements, 
currently supporting 4 young 
people within financial year 

Will continue to 
monitor 

13 Independent 
Safeguarding Services 

35 28.93 This figures relates to the use 
of independent reviewing 
officers – when CLA numbers 
are high this figure increases. 
As there are more CLA reviews 
and meetings. 

Will continue to 
monitor.  

 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 Social services wish to maintain a balanced budget by the end of the financial year. 

There are plans in place to look at the variations in the budget since last quarter and 
we are meeting regularly with Finance officers to discuss this. The next meeting to 
be held on the 31st January 2020.  

 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  

7.1 Regular meetings have been set up with social care management, cabinet member 
for social services and finance officers to discuss the budget position and how we can 
ensure a balanced budget moving forward. Budget Board meets monthly and 
challenges officers when there are areas of overspend.  

 
7.2 There are plans in place with regards to overspends within the Residential homes for 

the elderly due to a reconfiguration of the service, which was agreed at Council in 
September 2019. A report also went to Council in October 2019 to ask for approval to 
consult with the public and staff regards day services in future. This has commenced. 

 
7.3 We continue to work regional with neighbouring authorities and the health board on 

transformation of services, both in adult and children services. The integrated Care 
Fund and Transformation Fund has allowed for innovation in providing services across 
the region, for example in children services developing a therapy service for children 
looked after and in adults developing phase 2 of Stay Well @ Home.  

 
7.4 Children Services have developed the Early Help Hub and the Supporting Family 

Change team to provide support to families in a timely manner, so as to enhance the 
services for prevention and early intervention. They also have a sustainability strategy. 
We want to recruit more in house foster carers to prevent the use of Independent foster 
carers, and ensure children are looked after closer to home to enable them to access 
support locally. The first phase of this work has commenced and a package of support 
required for carers was agreed at cabinet at the end of last year. Several new carers 
are currently being assessed. 

 
7.5 Workshops taking place in January to consider the poverty agenda and how this can 

assist the work of early intervention and prevention, and maybe access funding to 
enhance the service further. 

 
 

 
 

Page 52



LISA CURTIS-JONES 
DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES 
CABINET MEMBER SOCIAL SERVICES 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Forward Work Programme 2019/20  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached work programme and approves, revises or 
amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in planning 
for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 
by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 10th January 2020 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 21st January 2020 

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 56



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives and priorities? 

b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns? 
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest? 
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications? 
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 

department; 
 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 

 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 
major issue; 

d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 
investigation / review; 

e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 

Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 

Page 57



c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
Member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc. 

 
Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

Page 58



f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 
calls for evidence). 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

17th April 2019 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 17th April 2019  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/s44203/Committee%20Report.pdf?LLL=0


  

APPENDIX I 

Page 60



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

Date / Timing 
PROPOSED 

Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet 
Member  

Scrutiny Focus  

11th June 2019 

Annual Forward Work 
Programme (2019/20) 

Cllr. Bill Smith and 
Social Services Scrutiny 
Committee Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - To consider and approve the Forward Work Programme for Social 
Services (2019/2020). 

Young Carers Annual 
Report (2018/19) 
 

Annabel Lloyd  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Summary report providing a position statement on the 
performance within 2018/19, along with any details of issues/barriers experienced and 
how these have been overcome. The report is also to consider key areas for development 
and improvement for 2019/20 within Merthyr Tydfil. 

Safeguarding Board 
Annual Report and 
Plan (2018/19) 

Nicola Kingham and 
officers / Jon Eyre / Cllr 
Chris Davies 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - To provide a summary of the 2018/19 Safeguarding Board Annual 
Regional Plan and also identify the key areas of improvement going forward both 
regionally and in Merthyr Tydfil. 

9th July 2019 

Cwm Taf Youth 
Offending Service 
(YOS) Annual Report  
(2018/19) 

Annabel Lloyd / 
Lyndon Lewis  

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Youth Offending Service (YOS) is a multi-agency team which is 
made up of members of the Police, Probation, Health, Education, Substance Misuse and 
Social Services; as well as other specific to the team.  The YOS deals with young people 
between the ages of 10 and 18 who are involved in the criminal justice system and those 
who are just on the periphery of becoming involved in the system. The Cwm Taf Youth 
Offending Service (YOS) last presented a progress update report to scrutiny on 24th July 
2018 based on the Post Inspection Action Plan.   
 
The committee requires a position statement on the performance within the Cwm Taf 
region (2018/19), along with any details of issues/barriers experienced and how these 
have been overcome. The report is also to consider key areas for development and 
improvement for 2019/20 within Merthyr Tydfil. 
 

Reconfiguration of 
Homes 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / 
Chris Davies/ Lowri 
Morgan / Angela 
Edevane  

Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to include an update and feedback from the recent 
consultation and a detailed plan prior to its submission to Full Council.   
 

ACRF - Annual Report 
on Social Services 
(2018/19) 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / Cllr 
Chris Davis / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 
/ Lorna Townsend  

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Draft ACRF was brought to Scrutiny on 7th May 2019 to provide 
comment and challenge as a part of the Consultation process. This report should contain 
all further updates from any additional consultation and previous comments made by 
Scrutiny, before submitting to Full Council.  
 

P
age 61



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Mental Health 
Inspection (2019/20?) 
Feedback Report 

Angela Edevane / 
Alyson Jones 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The report should consider the strengths and development areas 
highlighted within the recent Mental Health Inspection feedback report, and also to 
consider key areas for improvement within Merthyr Tydfil for 2019/20. 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 

17th September 2019 

Mid-year update on 
Social Services 
Complaints, 
Representations and 
Compliments Report.  
 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Local Authorities are required to the Social Services Complaints 
Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 to produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social Services 
Complaints, Representations and Compliments Policy and Procedures.  
 
The annual report (2018/19) was presented to Scrutiny on 12th March 2019. The 
committee has requested a mid-year (2019/20) report be brought back for consideration 
and challenge. The committee expects further information on complaints within the 
report (e.g. the areas the complaints were made, what processes etc. has been 
changed/introduced in order to reduce the number of complaints etc.).  
 

Adult Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q2/mid-year update 

Angela Edevane/Lowri 
Morgan 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a mid-year update on 
strategies applicable to Adult Social Services. 
 

A mid-year update on 
Cwm Taf Integrated 
Family Support Team 
(IFST) (2019/20) 
This report is no longer 
required as MTCBC has 
withdrawn from this 
collaboration (agreed 
by Chair on 5th Aug 
2019).   

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - To provide a regional mid-year position statement on the Cwm Taf 
IFST services, and also provide an update on the Edge of Care Service (EOC) within MTCBC. 

Self-Evaluation 
Findings: Question 1: 
Outcomes 

Cllr Chris Davies / Lisa 
Curtis Jones / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify 
and set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to 
the first of the key questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to 

P
age 62



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

scrutinise the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

8th October 2019 

Children Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q2/mid-year update 
 

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children’s Services will provide a mid-year update on 
strategies applicable to Children’s Social Services. 
 

Budget Position 
Statement (2019/20) 
Q2/mid-year update 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / Cllr 
Chris Davies / Stacey 
Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny providing an update on 
Social Services budget for Quarter 1 and Quarter 2, areas of likely overspend and the 
measures that have been put in place to help reduce any overspend within the 
department.    

A mid-year update on 
the Safeguarding 
Board Annual Report 
and Plan (2019/20) 

Nicola Kingham and 
officers / Jon Eyre / Cllr 
Chris Davies 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - To provide a summary of the 2018/19 Safeguarding Board Annual 
Regional Plan and also identify the key areas of improvement going forward both 
regionally and in Merthyr Tydfil. 
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 

10th December 2019 
17th December 2019 

Vale, Valleys And 
Cardiff Adoption 
Collaborative (VVC) 
Annual Report 
(2018/19) and 
2019/20 Merthyr 
Tydfil update  
This has been deferred 
to 10th March 2020. 

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to provide a regional annual position summary 
(2018/19) along with a current position update on this service within Merthyr Tydfil 
(2019/20). 
 

SS&WB Regional Plan 
– progress update 
(2019/20) 
Q2/mid-year update 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to provide a regional annual position summary 
(2018/19) along with a current position update on this service within Merthyr Tydfil 
(2019/20). 
 

P
age 63



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

A mid-year update on 
Young Carers 
 

Annabel Lloyd  Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny with a mid-year update on 
Carers Strategy and the impact it is having on the Young Carers.  Details should also be 
provided on any issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome or how 
you plan to overcome them.  

Self-Evaluation 
Findings: Question 2: 
Outcomes 
This has been deferred 
to 21st January 2020 

Cllr Chris Davies / Lisa 
Curtis Jones / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify 
and set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to 
the first of the key questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to 
scrutinise the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 

21st January 2020 

Self-Evaluation 
Findings: Question 2: 
Provision and Service 
delivery 
This has been deferred 
from 17th December 
2019 

Cllr Chris Davies / Lisa 
Curtis Jones / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify 
and set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to 
the first of the key questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to 
scrutinise the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   

Adult Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q3 update 

Angela Edevane Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a mid-year update on 
strategies applicable to Adult Social Services. 
 

Corporate Parenting 
Update 

Annabel Lloyd  Scrutiny & Challenge: -  To provide data and performance in relation to Corporate 
Parenting 

Budget Position 
Statement (2019/20) 
update 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / Cllr 
Chris Davies / Stacey 
Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny providing an update on 
Social Services budget for Quarter 1, 2 and 3, and areas of likely overspend and the 
measures that have been put in place to help reduce any overspend within the 
department.  This report should also give any details of issues/barriers experienced and 
how these have been overcome. 
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

P
age 64



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

10th March 2020 

Children Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q3/end of year update 
 

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children’s Services will provide a Quarter 3/end of year 
update on strategies applicable to Children’s Social Services. 
 

Self-Evaluation 
Findings: Question 3: 
Outcomes 

Cllr Chris Davies / Lisa 
Curtis Jones / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify 
and set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to 
the first of the key questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to 
scrutinise the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   

Vale, Valleys And 
Cardiff Adoption 
Collaborative (VVC) 
Annual Report 
(2018/19) and 
2019/20 Merthyr 
Tydfil update  
This has been deferred 
from 17th December 
2019. 

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to provide a regional annual position summary 
(2018/19) along with a current position update on this service within Merthyr Tydfil 
(2019/20). 
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

5th May 2020 

Annual Complaints 
Report (2019/20) 
End of year update 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Local Authorities are required to the Social Services Complaints 
Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 to produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social Services 
Complaints, Representations and Compliments Policy and Procedures.  
 
A mid-year report (2019/20) was presented to Scrutiny in September 2019. The 
committee has requested an end of year report (2019/20) for consideration and 
challenge. The report should include any details of issues/barriers experienced and how 
these have been overcome. The report is also to identify key areas for development and 
improvement for 2020/21. 

P
age 65



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

ACRF Report (2019/20) 
(consultation) 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Following a consultation workshop with Scrutiny Members; a 
report summarising key messages from the Annual Report on Social Services 2019/2020 
will be presented for information. 
 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the next Committee 
meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are available to report 
authors who will be drafting the report. 

 
Additional items to consider for Work 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

LAC Work (Welsh 
Government visit)  

This would be better delivered in the form of a presentation when the information is available. 
 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Fostering Inspection 
Report  and Fostering 
Framework Report  
 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Advocacy Annual 
Report  
 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Self Evaluation Reports  Early indication would suggest there are three reports throughout the scrutiny cycle (1 report per SER question). 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Possibility of a Joint 
Scrutiny with Learning 
and LGES  

Possible topics to consider:  

 Educational Achievements of Children Looked After (CLA) and Care Leavers; 

 Tackling Poverty; 

 Community Zones; and 

 Early Years Learning. 

 Violence against 
Women Domestic 
Abuse and Sexual 
Violence (Annual 
report 2018/19) 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  
/ Annabel Lloyd / 
Cllr Chris Davies / 
Deborah Evans 
(SMT) / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council is a member of the Cwm Taf 
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) Steering Group, 
which is the lead partnership taking forward the Cwm Taf regions implementation of the 
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015. 
 

The Committee would like to receive a summary report providing a position statement on 
‘Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence’ within the Cwm Taf region 
(2018/19). The report should include any details of issues/barriers experienced and how these 

P
age 66



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 

have been overcome. The report is also to consider key areas for development and 
improvement for 2019/20 within Merthyr Tydfil. 

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Corporate Self-Evaluation - Question 2 (Provision and  Service Delivery)
	Appendix

	4 Adult Social Care Strategies
	5 Corporate Parenting Board Update
	6 Budget Update for Scrutiny Committee
	7 Forward Work Programme 2019/20
	Appendix 1


